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Economic Development Department
Request for Proposals (RFP) due February 28, 2020 by 4PM
Management of the Sunset Strip Business Improvement District
City Response to Questions issued: February 11, 2020

1. How many businesses are assessed in each BID?
· Sunset Strip BID Businesses: 287
· West Hollywood Design District BID Businesses: 317
2. What is the total annual budget from assessed funds?
· Sunset Strip FY2020 Annual Budget from assessed fees: $337,775
· West Hollywood Design District FY2020 Annual Budget from assessed funds:  $134,980
3. What is the assessment formula for each BID?
Sunset Strip Business Improvement District Assessment Structure for Businesses
I. Nightclub/Bar or Adult
1. Occupancy 600 and above: $17,500
2. Occupancy 250-599: $10,000
3. Occupancy 100-249: $7,500
4. Occupancy 0-99: $2,500
II. Hotel 
1. Room Count 120 and over: $2,000
2. Room Count 0-119: $2,000
III. Restaurant
1. ABC 47/48 + Occupancy 450 and over: $12,500
2. ABC 47/48 + Occupancy 275 – 449: $7,500 
3. ABC 47/48 + Occupancy 175 – 274: $5,000
4. ABC 47/48 + Occupancy 100 – 174: $3,750
5. ABC 47/48 + Occupancy 0 – 99: $2,500
6. Without ABC 47/48 + Occupancy 50+: $1,980
7. Without ABC 47/48 + Occupancy 0 – 49: $800
IV. Other
1. Liquor/Convenience Store: $2,500
2. On-Street Valet (per location): $2,000
3. Retail Stores: $200
Design District Business Improvement District Assessment Structure for Businesses
In addition to the base amount, businesses in Categories 1 and 2 will be assessed an additional amount based on their annual gross sales. Businesses in Categories 1 and 2 with $100,000 or less in gross sales will not be assessed an additional amount.
I. Category 1: Fee based on Annual Gross Sales for Prior Year + $180
1. $0 - $100,000: $180
2. $100,001 - $250,000: $280
3. $250,001 - $500,000: $380
4. $500,001 - $750,000: $480
5. $750,001 - $1,000,000: $580
6. $1,000,001 - $1,500,000: $780
7. $1,500,001 - $2,000,000: $980
8. $2,000,001 + : $1,180
II. Category 2: Fee based on Annual Gross Sales for Prior Year + $120
1. $0 - $100,000: $120
2. $100,001 - $200,000: $220
3. $200,001 - $400,000: $320
4. $400,001 - $700,000: $420
5. $700,001 - $1,000,000: $520
6. $1,000,001 + : $620
III. Category 3: $100
IV. Category 4: $60
V. Category 5: $0
VI. Category 6: $100 x the number of leases

4. Who is responsible for managing businesses that don’t pay?
The City of West Hollywood’s Revenue Division manages the assessment, payment, and delinquent payments of BID businesses.
5. How are organizational business filings currently managed?
The business filings for BID businesses are tied to the City’s tax certificate. Please refer to the response to question #13 for more information.
6. How are Board Elections currently managed?
The Board Elections follows the process outlined in Article III Section 3 of the BID Bylaws (uploaded as an attachment). Nominations may be submitted to the Board by any district business, or any Board Director. The Chair of the Board of Directors appoints a Nominations Committee to review nominations. The Committee then makes its recommendations for a slate to the Board. The number of nominees on the slate is not to exceed the number of opens seats. The Board of Directors then votes on these nominees at the regularly scheduled July Meeting. 
The Board is permitted to have up to nine members, all of whom are required to be members of the Business Improvement District. Honorary Board Members may be appointed as determined by the Board. 
7. Would quarterly reports meet the requirement for “Regular Reports”?
The BID Management team is required to provide regular reports at the monthly BID Board Meetings that include an updated budget, outreach and engagement statistics, and new and closed businesses within the BID. Quarterly reports are not required. Additionally, the BID Management team is required to provide an annual report to the City (examples uploaded as an attachment). 
8. Are there any existing vendors that need to be considered by the entity awarded the contract?
Currently, Visit West Hollywood works with a digital media and marketing team to promote the online presence of the BIDs. The BID Management team may continue to work with that company at the discretion of the BID Board.
9. What software is currently being utilized to track performance and engagement?
Currently, Visit West Hollywood engages with BID businesses through email, social media, and website content. Engagement through email is managed and monitored via MailChimp Email Marketing; social media performance and engagement is monitored via Hootsuite; and additional social media analytics are gathered from Facebook and Instagram. The BID Management team (awarded entity) will coordinate with the BID Board to determine how to integrate these tracking tools into a platform of their choosing. 
10. What platforms and analytics sites are currently being used for social media and the website?
Visit West Hollywood maintains the BID websites which utilize Wordpress for content management, and Google Analytics and Google Search Console for performance analytics. Hootsuite, Facebook and Instagram are used to provide analytics for social media platforms. The BID Management team (awarded entity) will coordinate with the BID Board to determine how to integrate these tracking tools into a platform of their choosing.
11. How many special or proportional events/programs are required, and will the content, format and program be determined by the awarded entity?
Any special events and/or programs are directed by the BID Board. The content of these events and/or programs will be developed collaboratively between the BID Board and the BID Manager (the awarded entity). The BID Manager will pursue additional programming at the discretion of the BID Board.

12. What type of programming is currently being offered and what has been requested by the businesses?
Currently, the BID programming includes monthly/quarterly mixers, holiday events, and summer programming. As represented by the BID Board, the businesses have discussed additional special programming to highlight the arts and hospitality for each of the respective districts.
13. Will any organizational management duties be required of the entity awarded the contract? Are there any business filings that need to be managed with the State or for 990s. Charitable trust?
The BID Manager (awarded entity) will be responsible for the accounting, banking, insurance, board meetings (posting agenda, minutes, financials) etc. Tax filings for the BIDS are handled by the BID Management. 
14. What is the condition of the holiday lighting collateral and is there a desire to expand the installations to more areas?
There is no holiday lighting collateral in the BID Districts. The holiday lights are owned and installed by a contract service provider. Installation of the lights are limited to the BID service area.
Separately the City has a Santa Monica Boulevard Landscaping and Lighting District that funds the holiday lights along Santa Monica Boulevard.
15. Is the installation and maintenance of the lighting included as a budget line item?
Please refer to the response in question 14. 
16. Will the awarded entity be responsible for facilitating a Public Records request?
As a public sector entity, the City is solely responsible for responding to Public Records Requests.
image1.jpeg
City of West Hollywood
California 1984





